**FILED**

SID J. WHITE

**DEC 21 1992**

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.: 80,478

CLERK, SUPREME COURT.

By \_\_\_\_\_  
Chief Deputy Clerk

WORLD WIDE UNDERWRITERS  
INSURANCE COMPANY a/k/a,  
f/k/a WAUSAU INSURANCE  
COMPANY,

Defendant/Petitioner,

v.

STEVEN WELKER,

Plaintiff/Respondent.

---

RESPONSE TO PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

---

Kutner, Rubinoﬀ, Thompson & Bush  
Attorneys for respondent  
501 N.E. First Avenue  
Miami, FL 33132 (305) 358-6200

#

INTRODUCTION

This response opposing jurisdiction is filed on behalf of Steven Welker, the appellant/plaintiff below.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The opinion which is the subject of the petition for review holds that where a carrier provides basic liability coverage to all resident family members without regard to the automobile occupied at the time of the accident, the carrier cannot then deny UM coverage to those class I insureds by relying upon a later section of the policy excluding liability or UM coverage based upon the vehicle occupied at the time of the accident. A careful reading of the cases petitioner claims conflict with this holding demonstrates no conflict at all and instead a

settled jurisprudence in this court and all the districts on the point of law.

#### ARGUMENT

The holding of the Fourth District below is entirely consistent with Mullis v. State Farm Auto Ins. Co., 252 So.2d 229 (Fla. 1971). In Mullis, the injured son, as the injured son in this case, Steven Welker, came within the definition of an insured under the policy although the vehicle occupied at the time of injury was not insured under the automobile liability portion of the policy. Mullis held that the named insured and the resident relatives are class I insureds entitled to UM insurance coverage whenever and wherever bodily injury is inflicted upon them by a negligent UM motorist. This is so even though the automobile Steven Welker occupied at the time of his injuries, like the vehicle Mr. Mullis' son occupied at the time of his injuries, was not insured under the automobile liability endorsement to the policy and would have afforded no liability insurance to him had he been the negligent party. See also State Fire & Casualty Co. v. Polgar, 551 So.2d 549 (Fla. 4th DCA 1989) (same).

Erroneously, petitioner contends conflict with Bolin v. Massachusetts Bay Ins. Co., 518 So.2d 393 (Fla. 2d DCA 1987), Dairyland Insurance Co. v. Kriz, 495 So.2d 892 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986) and France v. Liberty Mutual Insurance Co., 380 So.2d 1115 (Fla. 3d DCA 1980). As the Fourth District pointed out, the operative

insurance policy language in those cases were significantly different from the language of the policy in the instant case. In France and Dairyland, the policies defined an insured as a resident family member who did not own a car. In Bolin, the policy divided its "persons insured" sections into owned and nonowned automobiles and contained no inclusion extending basic liability coverage to all resident family members.

The appellate decisions involving policy language virtually identical to the policy in the instant case have consistently held that the resident family member is entitled to UM coverage. See Lewis v. Cincinnati Insurance Co., 503 So.2d 908 (Fla. 5th DCA) rev.denied 511 So.2d 297 (Fla. 1987); Incardona v. Auto Owners Insurance Co., 494 So.2d 513 (Fla. 2d DCA 1986), rev.denied 503 So.2d 326 (Fla. 1987); Auto Owners Insurance Co. v. Queen, 468 So.2d 498 (Fla. 5th DCA 1985) and Auto Owners Insurance Co. v. Bennett, 466 So.2d 242 (Fla. 2d DCA 1984). These cases are consistent with Mullis v. State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Co. in which this court held that class I insureds are entitled to UM protection whenever and wherever bodily injury is inflicted upon them by a negligent uninsured motorist.

Petitioner's doom and gloom forecast of higher insurance rates is unpersuasive. Ever since Mullis was decided in 1971, insurance carriers have known how to word ensuring clauses in order to legally avoid coverage. In 1989, the Florida legislature amended the UM coverage statute to allow insurers to issue UM

coverage for injuries occurring in covered automobiles only. See §627.727(9)(d) Fla.Stat. (1989). This amendment has no application here since the policy in question was issued prior to the amendment's effective date. Carbonell v. Auto Insurance Co. of Hartford, 562 So.2d 437 (Fla. 3d DCA 1990).

CONCLUSION

Petitioner cannot demonstrate any basis for this court to accept review. Accordingly, this court should deny the petition.


Kutner, Rubinoﬀ, Thompson & Bush  
Attorneys for respondent  
501 N.E. First Avenue  
Miami, FL 33132 (305) 358-6200