EDS:rbp October 20, 1992 BL-21768-C Welker.BRF

IN THE SUPREME COURT FLORIDA

CASE NO.: 80,478

WORLD WIDE UNDERWRITERS INSURANCE COMPANY a/k/a, f/k/a WAUSAU INSURANCE COMPANY,

Defendant/Petitioner,

v.

STEVEN WELKER,

Plaintiff/Respondent.

WORLDWIDE UNDERWRITERS' BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

PYSZKA, KESSLER, MASSEY, WELDON, CATRI, HOLTON & DOUBERLEY, P.A. The 110 Tower, 20th Floor 110 Southeast 6th Street Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 (305) 463-8593

BY: EDWARD D. SCHUSTER, ESQ.
Attorney for Defendant/Petitioner

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND OF THE FACTS

Welker sued World Wide, for uninsured motorist coverage, under his mother's automobile policy for damages he sustained in an accident allegedly caused by a phantom vehicle. Welker was living with his mother at the time of the accident but owned his own vehicle, which was the vehicle involved in the accident. Welker had automobile liability insurance but specifically rejected uninsured motorist coverage for his own automobile. It is undisputed that Welker's vehicle was not defined as an insured vehicle under the World Wide policy. The policy contained the following pertinent provisions regarding liability coverage:

"We will pay damages for bodily injury or property damage for which any **covered person** becomes legally responsible because of an automobile accident

Covered person as used in this part means:

1. you or any family member for the ownership, maintenance or use of any auto or trailer . . .

EXCLUSIONS

- b. we do not provide liability coverage for the ownership, maintenance or use of:
- 2. any vehicle, other than **your covered auto**, which is:
 - a. owned by any family member . . .". (App. 11-12)

Further on in the policy, **family member** is described as "... a person related to you by blood, marriage, or adoption, who is a resident of your household . . ." (App.

10). Your covered auto is defined as "any vehicle shown in the declarations." (App. 10). Lastly, "you" is defined as the "named insured shown in a declarations . . . " (App. 10).

The trial court granted summary judgment in favor of World Wide based upon the above policy language and denied Welker uninsured motorist coverage. This is because the liability portion of the policy excluded liability coverage for the maintenance, ownership or use by Welker of his own automobile. Thus, since Welker would not have been afforded liability coverage for the accident, neither would he be afforded uninsured motorist coverage.¹

On appeal, the Fourth District Court of Appeals reversed. It defined the issue as whether Welker would be entitled to liability coverage as a resident family member so that he was also entitled to uninsured motorist coverage. (App. 1). The Court found that the exclusion, found in the liability section, could not exclude liability coverage to Welker for the accident in question and thus, Welker was afforded uninsured motorist coverage. (App. 1-6). Welker now seeks discretionary review of that order in this Court.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The decision rendered by the Fourth District Court of Appeal in the instant case, expressly and directly conflicts with several other District Courts of Appeal's opinions on the same question of law. The question of law involved is whether the exclusion in the liability portion of the World Wide policy can exclude Welker from liability coverage, and

The uninsured motorist portion of the policy specifically excluded uninsured motorist coverage while occupying or being struck by any motor vehicle owned by any family member which was not insured for the coverage under the policy. (App. 14).

thus exclude him from uninsured motorist coverage under his mother's policy since he owns and insures his own vehicle which was involved in the accident. Other District Courts of Appeal that have considered this issue have unanimously held that in such situations, a resident relative who owns his or her own motor vehicle is clearly excluded from coverage under such circumstances. Given the express and direct conflict presented, World Wide respectfully requests that this Court exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and entertain the instant case on its merits.

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This Court is vested with discretionary jurisdiction to review a decision of the District Court of Appeal which expressly and directly conflicts with the decision of the Supreme Court or another District Court of Appeal on the same question of law. Art. V §3(b)(3) Fla. Const. (1980); Fla. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(a)(IV). Ford Motor Company v. Kikis, 401 So. 2d 1341, 1342 (Fla. 1981).

I. THE DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH BOLIN v. MASSACHUSETTS BAY INSURANCE COMPANY; ² DAIRYLAND INSURANCE COMPANY v. KRIZ; ³ FRANCE v. LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY; ⁴ AND VALIANT INSURANCE COMPANY v. WEBSTER; ⁵ AND PRAETORIANS v. FISHER, ⁶ ON THE SAME QUESTION OF LAW.

The question of law decided by the Fourth District Court of Appeal at bar is:
"... whether Welker is entitled to basic liability coverage under the automobile policy as a resident family member such that he was also entitled to the protection of uninsured motorist coverage afforded by the policy.". (App. 1). The decision that the exclusion in the liability section of the policy in question could not exclude Welker from liability coverage and thus, exclude him from uninsured motorist coverage expressly and directly conflicts with *Bolin v. Massachusetts Bay Insurance Company*, 518 So. 2d 393 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1987).

In *Bolin*, Mr. Bolin, who resided with his wife, sought uninsured motorist coverage under his wife's policy for injuries sustained while driving his own vehicle. *Id*, 518 So. 2nd at 394. The policy excluded Mr. Bolin from liability coverage and uninsured

²518 So. 2d 393 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1987).

³ 495 So. 2d 892 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986).

⁴ 387 So. 2d 1155 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1980).

⁵ 567 So. 2d 408 (Fla. 1990).

⁶ 89 So.2d 329 (Fla. 1956).

motorist coverage due to the fact that he owned the automobile in question but did not insure the vehicle under the policy in question that was involved in the accident. The Second District Court held that Mr. Bolin was not entitled to liability or uninsured motorist coverage under his wife's policy, due to the exclusion from coverage while he drove his own vehicle which was not insured under the policy. Accordingly, the *Bolin* decision expressly and directly conflicts with the decision rendered by the Fourth District Court of Appeal that Welker is afforded liability and uninsured motorist coverage, even though he also owned the automobile in question and did not insure the vehicle under the policy in question.

The decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal expressly and directly conflict with *Dairyland Insurance Company v. Kriz*, 495 So. 2d 892 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986), on the same question of law. In *Kriz*, a resident family member was defined as a liability insured except if they owned a car. Id, at 892. Kriz resided with her son and sought uninsured motorist coverage for injuries she sustained as a passenger in a third party's automobile. *Id.* She owned an automobile at the time of the accident that was not insured under the Dairyland policy. *Ibid.* The Court decided: "In the instant case, the plain language of the insurance policy expressly extends liability coverage only to those resident relatives who do not own a car. The policy therefore does not provide liability coverage to Appellee, who owns a car." 495 So. 2d at 893.

In the case at bar, the Fourth District Court of Appeal decided that the policy in question could not exclude Welker from liability coverage if he owned his own vehicle. Therefore, uninsured motorist coverage was also available to him. This is so despite the

fact that the World Wide policy expressly excludes resident relatives from liability coverage who own a car. The Fourth District Court of Appeal's decision therefore expressly and directly conflicts with *Kriz, Supra*.

The decision rendered by the Fourth District Court of Appeal also expressly and directly conflicts with *France v. Liberty Mutual Insurance Company*, 380 So. 2d 1155 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1980). In *France*, the resident relative was excluded from uninsured motorist coverage due to the fact that she owned her own passenger automobile. The Court reasoned: "We decline to extend the public policy as France urges so as to allow a member of the family to purchase one liability policy and claim total coverage thereunder for the entire family while vastly increasing the risk to his or her insurer by knowingly owning and operating a fleet of uninsured vehicles upon the highways." Id, at 1156. Clearly, express and direct conflict exists between France, and the decision at bar which permitted both liability and uninsured motorist coverage to be afforded Welker where it was expressly excluded if he owned his own vehicle.

Simply, the Fourth District Court of Appeal's decision expressly and directly conflict with the decisions outlined above when it afforded uninsured motorist coverage to Welker, despite the fact that he owned his own auto and was expressly excluded from liability coverage for the maintenance, ownership, or use of his own auto. In such situations, other courts have held that the insured is neither entitled to liability coverage nor uninsured motorist coverage. Ironically, the reasons for this are sound and stated by the Fourth District Court of Appeal itself in construing *identical* policy provisions to those above during the denial of liability coverage to a resident relative who owned her own

vehicle: "Appellee's contention would also mean that, under the terms of the policy here involved, whenever a family residing together in the same household owned more than one vehicle, it would be necessary to insure only one in order to have coverage on all. We do not accept this contention." *South Carolina Insurance Company v. Heuer*, 402 So. 2d 480, 482 (Fla. 4th DCA 1981).

Lastly, the Fourth District Court of Appeal's decision expressly and directly conflicts with *Praetorians v. Fisher*, 89 So.2d 329, 333 (Fla. 1956) on the same question of law. *Praetorians* announced the rule of insurance policy construction that: "A single insurance policy provision must not be construed in isolation, but should be construed with other policy provisions, against the background of the case." At bar, the Fourth District refused to read the exclusion section of the liability policy and only read and applied the definition section of the liability policy. Thus, the District Court's decision to construe the policy in that fashion expressly and directly conflicts with *Praetorians* on the same question of law.

In sum, this Court should exercise its discretion and review the decision at bar to resolve the conflict it has created with the decisions of other courts. Also, this decision has the potential to vastly increase the risk and make computing premiums related to risks next to impossible to ascertain. This can only have the effect of increasing rates since realistically, the insurer will be unable to determine how many "resident relatives" may reside with one insured at any one time under any policy of insurance.

CONCLUSION

Wherefore, due to the foregoing, World Wide respectfully requests that this Court exercise its discretion and take jurisdiction of this case due to the conflict demonstrated in the brief.